

## **Legal Deposit Advisory Panel**

The Secretary of State has appointed the members of the Legal Deposit Advisory Panel. The Panel will advise the Secretary of State on the timing and content of regulations relating to legal deposit and to oversee the implementation of the Legal Deposit Libraries Act 2003. The first meeting of the Panel will be in September 2005.

### **Background**

These appointments have been made in accordance with the OCPA Code of Practice. They are not remunerated, except for the post of Chair. Except where stated, the individuals hold no other public appointments.

All appointments are made on merit and political activity plays no part in the selection process. However, in accordance with the original Nolan recommendations, there is a requirement for appointees' political activity (if any declared) to be made public. Ann Limb has declared that she has canvassed on behalf of the Labour party. Other appointees have declared no political activity in the last five years.

### **Appointments**

Ten members have been appointed to the Panel:

#### **Ann Limb (Chair)**

Ann Limb has spent her career in public service, the latter half leading substantial educational institutions and as Group Chief Executive of the University for Industry (UfiLtd), between 2001-2004 spearheaded learndirect and UK online the government's major national e-learning and e-services initiatives. She was Chief Executive, Cambridge Regional College, from 1996-2001 and Chief Executive, Milton Keynes College, from 1989-1996. Ann has experience of working with government ministers and officials, including in the devolved administrations and regional hubs, together with industry, stakeholders and private partners. She is an experienced Chair and holds a number of Non-Executive Director positions in the public and private sectors, including, currently, DRS Data & Research Services plc, a large design and manufacturing company specialising in automated data capture and information processing.

#### **Robin Adams**

Since 2002 Robin Adams has been Librarian and College Archivist at Trinity College Dublin and was Deputy Librarian there from 1991. He is vice-chair of the Committee on Library Co-operation in Ireland (COLICO), and member of the Legal Deposit Librarians Committee, the Consortium of University Research Libraries and the Consortium of University and National libraries.

#### **Peter Fox**

Peter Fox has been University Librarian at the University of Cambridge since 1994. This follows ten years at Trinity College, Dublin as Librarian and College Archivist (1984-1994). He currently sits on the Joint Committee on Legal Deposit (JCLD), is Chair of the Wellcome Trust Library Advisory Committee and a member of the Lord Chancellor's Advisory Committee on National Archives and Records. He also chairs a joint project between Cambridge and MIT to establish a digital repository for the University.

**Hugh Jones**

Since 1999 Hugh Jones has advised the UK and international publishing trade as a copyright and legal consultant. He has worked with The Publishers Association and The Publishers Licensing Society as well as the International Association of Scientific, Technical and Medical Publishers. He has also worked on EU-wide legal deposit discussions as a member of the federation of European Publishers. He has previously worked for the publishers Sweet and Maxwell and Macmillan and had eight years legal practice with a city law firm.

**Sally Morris**

Sally Morris has been Chief Executive of the Association of Learned and Professional Society Publishers since 1998, representing the interests of 320 publishers, specifically in the not-for-profit sector. She was previously Director of Copyright and Licensing at John Wiley and Sons (1995-1998) and worked in the journals sector for Churchill Livingstone before this (1984-1995). She is a member of JCLD and a director of the Publishers' Licensing Society and Copyright Licensing Agency.

**Andrew Yeates**

A media lawyer and business affairs specialist, Andrew Yeates is currently a legal adviser for the Educational Recording Agency Ltd, intellectual property adviser for the Periodical Publishers Association and Chairman of the Creative Exports Group. He is currently working as a part time Rights Consultant for PACT (the trade association for independent television and film production companies). He was previously Director General of the British Phonographic Industry (2000-2004) and Corporation Secretary and Head of Rights at Channel 4 Television (1994-1999).

**Trevor Fenwick**

Trevor Fenwick has been Managing Director of Euromonitor plc, a leading publisher of market research reports, business reference books and online information systems, since 1978. He has also been President of Euromonitor International Inc. since 1993. He has acted as Chairman of the Directory and Database Publishers Association and President of the European Association of Directory and Database Publishers. He is also part of the Digital Content Forum, a member of the Advisory Panel on Public Sector Information and a member of JCLD.

**Nicholas Higham**

Nicholas Higham is a qualified solicitor, specialising in telecommunications law, Information Technology, eCommerce, Internet applications and Intellectual Property Law. Having been a Partner with Denton Wilde Sapte and other commercial law firms in the City over the past 25 years, he now works as an independent consultant. He is an experienced committee member and has experience of working with Government agencies, Ministers and stakeholders.

**Nina Barakzai**

Nina Barakzai is Group Compliance Officer for the ntl Group Ltd and a qualified accountant and solicitor. She is heavily involved with European Directives of E-Commerce, Electronic Communications and other UK and EU legislation that impacts on non-print media, working closely with rights holder organisations. She has previously had posts at Associated Newspapers and Reuters.

**Adrienne Muir**

Adrienne Muir is a university lecturer and researcher, and has recently completed doctoral research on the legal deposit of digital publications, including copyright and licensing issues. At Loughborough University since 2000, she is a Lecturer in Information Science, which includes information sources and preservation management. She has been a member of various advisory groups for projects and organisations working in areas relevant to legal deposit.

### **Simon Tanner**

Simon Tanner is Director of King's Digital Consultancy Services, based at King's College London, which provides specialist information and digital services for cultural, heritage and information professionals plus corporate clients. A qualified librarian and member of the Chartered Institute of Library and Information Professionals, he has advised and worked with all the deposit libraries in the UK, many national libraries in Europe and has extensive knowledge of the information and publishing sector.

### **Ex-officio Posts**

In addition to these appointments the panel has four ex-officio seats for four organisations. These are as follows:

<b>Organisation</b>	<b>Post</b>
Digital Content Forum	"Chair of the Intellectual Property Rights Action Group"
British Library	"Director of Scholarship and Collections"
National Library of Scotland	"National Librarian"
National Library of Wales	"Librarian"

Ex-officio Members are not on the Advisory Panel on a personal basis. They are Members because of the position they hold. If the holder of the 'primary' post (listed above) changes, then the ex-officio representative on the Advisory Panel will change to the new holder of the primary post. The current holders of the above posts are:

### **Angela Mills Wade**

Digital Content Forum: Chair of the Intellectual Property Rights Action Group  
 Since 1991 Angela Mills Wade has been the Executive Director of the European Publishers Council (EPC) a high level group of CEOs of Europe's leading media corporations actively involved in multimedia markets spanning newspaper, magazine, on-line database and internet publishing. She also coordinates the British Internet Publishers Alliance (BIPA) and is Chairman and a Director of Europe Analytica Ltd, a European public affairs company based in Brussels, which she founded in 1999. Angela is currently the Chairman of the Digital Content Forum's IPR Industry Action Group, the Joint-Chairman of JCLD, a Member of the Government's Creative Industries IP Forum and Chairman of the Forum's IP Crime and Online Infringements Working Group.

### **Clive Field**

British Library: Director of Scholarship and Collections

Clive has been Director of Scholarship and Collections at The British Library since 2001. He has held a variety of library and information management positions at the Universities of Manchester and Birmingham. He is active in a number of national library organisations and has served for more than eight years as a Director of the Consortium of Research Libraries in the British Isles. He is joint-chair of JCLD and was a leading figure in the campaign to secure the extension of legal deposit. He is the author of 'Securing Digital Legal Deposit in the UK: The Legal Deposit Libraries Act 2003', *Alexandria*, 16(2), 2004, 87-111.

### **Martyn Wade**

National Library of Scotland: National Librarian

Martyn Wade was appointed National Librarian of the National Library of Scotland in September 2002, after 25 years experience in the public library sector. Formerly Head of Libraries, Information and Learning with Glasgow City Council, he has significant experience in developing community focused e-based learning and information services. He currently sits on JCLD, as well as a number of committees for university and research libraries, is a member of the Scottish Library and Information Council, and is council member of Lifelong Learning UK, the sector skills council that includes the library and information sector.

### **Andrew Green**

National Library of Wales: Librarian

Andrew Green has been Librarian of the National Library of Wales at Aberystwyth since October 1998. Up to 1998 his career was spent in British university libraries. Andrew contributes to the work of many information and cultural bodies in Wales and beyond, including the Wales Higher Education Libraries Forum (WHELF), the Welsh Committee of the British Council, and the National Libraries Committee of the International Federation of Library Associations. He chairs a Steering Group of the Higher Education Funding Council for Wales that is developing a national strategy on Welsh medium higher education.

If you require any additional information on the Legal deposit Advisory Panel please contact the Secretary: Fran Love [frances.love@culture.gsi.gov.uk](mailto:frances.love@culture.gsi.gov.uk).